YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT

ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT

YFNS 87/2025



This law enacted on March 24, 2025

Charles McCarthy, President of the

Yuulu?il?ath First Nation

DEPOSITED IN THE REGISTRY OF LAWS

ON 26/MAR/2025

Signature of Law Clerk

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 - INTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS	5
Short title	
Executive oversight	
PART 2 - BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION ACT AMENDMENTS	
Building and Development Authorization Act amendments	
PART 3 - COMMUNITY SAFETY AND TRESPASS ACT AMENDMENTS	
Community Safety and Trespass Act amendments	
PART 4 - CITIZENSHIP ACT AMENDMENTS	
Citizenship Act amendments	
PART 5 - CODE OF CONDUCT AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACT AMENDMENTS	
Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Act amendments	
PART 6 - COMMITTEE ACT AMENDMENTS	
Committee Act amendments	
PART 7 - COVID-19 TRANSITION ACT AMENDMENTS	
Covid-19 Transition Act amendments	
PART 8 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACT AMENDMENTS	
Economic Development Act amendments	
PART 9 - ELECTIONS ACT AMENDMENTS	
Elections Act amendments	
PART 10 - EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS ACT AMENDMENTS	
Emergency Preparedness Act amendments	
PART 11 - ENFORCEMENT ACT AMENDMENTS	
Enforcement Act amendments	
PART 12 - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT AMENDMENTS	
Environmental Protection Act amendments	
PART 13 - FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION ACT AMENDMENTS	
Financial Administration Act amendments	
PART 14 - FOREST ACT AMENDMENTS	
Forest Act amendments	
PART 15 - FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT AMENDA	
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act amendments	
·	
PART 16 - GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL ACT AMENDMENTS Government Personnel Act amendments	
PART 17 - GOVERNMENT ACT AMENDMENTS	
FART 1/ - GOVERNIVERT ACT AMERICANDIVERTS	

Government Act amendments	42
PART 18 - INTERPRETATION ACT AMENDMENTS	44
Interpretation Act amendments	44
PART 19 - LAND ACT AMENDMENTS	46
Land Act amendments	46
PART 20 - LEGISLATURE RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE ACT AMENDMENTS	53
Legislature Rules of Order and Procedure Act amendments	53
PART 21 - PLANNING AND LAND USE MANAGEMENT ACT AMENDMENTS	55
Planning and Land Use Management Act amendments	55
PART 22 - PUBLIC ORDER, PEACE AND SAFETY ACT AMENDMENTS	57
Public Order, Peace and Safety Act amendments	57
PART 23 - REFERENDUM ACT AMENDMENTS	59
Referendum Act amendments	59
PART 24 - RESOURCES HARVESTING ACT AMENDMENTS	61
Resources Harvesting Act amendments	61
PART 25 - SUBSURFACE RESOURCES ACT AMENDMENTS	63
Subsurface Resources Act amendments	63
PART 26 - ZONING AND STRUCTURES ACT AMENDMENTS	65
Zoning and Structures Act amendments	65
PART 27 - GENERAL PROVISIONS	67
Commencement	67

PART 1 - INTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS

Short title

1.1 This Act may be cited as the Administration Structure Amendment Act, YFNS 87/2025.

Executive oversight

1.2 The President is responsible for the executive oversight of this Act.

Authority and Application

- 1.3 (a) This Act is enacted under
 - (i) 13.11.1 of Chapter 13 Governance of the Maa-nulth Treaty, and
 - (ii) section 3.2(b) of the Constitution.
 - (b) This Act applies to all Yuulu?il?ath enactments.

PART 2 - BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION ACT AMENDMENTS

Building and Development Authorization Act amendments

2.1 The Building and Development Authorization Act, YFNS 23/2012 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "assets manager" and substituting "director of capital infrastructure and asset management".

PART 3 - COMMUNITY SAFETY AND TRESPASS ACT AMENDMENTS

Community Safety and Trespass Act amendments

- 3.1 The Community Safety and Trespass Act, YFNS 70/2021 is amended as follows:
 - (a) in section 1.4, by repealing the definition of "director";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the words "community services manager" and substituting "director of health and social services";
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer"; and
 - (d) by striking out every occurrence of the words "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources".

PART 4 - CITIZENSHIP ACT AMENDMENTS

Citizenship Act amendments

- 4.1 The Citizenship Act, YFNS 10/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) section 1.4 is amended by striking out the definition of "registrar" and substituting the following:
 - "registrar" means the citizenship and enrolment registrar established by regulation under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011";
 - (b) by repealing sections 3.1 and 3.3;
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the words "community services" and substituting "health and social services";
 - (d) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (e) by striking out every occurrence of the words "Department of Community Services" and substituting "Department of Health and Social Services";
 - (f) by striking out every occurrence of the words "community services manager" and substituting "director of health and social services"; and
 - (g) section 1.2 is amended by striking out the words "community services portfolio" and substituting "health and social services portfolio".

PART 5 - CODE OF CONDUCT AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST ACT AMENDMENTS

Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Act amendments

- 5.1 The Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Act, YFNS 2/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) section 1.2 is amended by striking out the words "the member of the Executive holding the community services portfolio" and substituting "the President";
 - (b) section 1.4 is amended by repealing the definition of "director";
 - (c) by striking out every other occurrence of the word "director" and substituting "chief administrative officer", except in section 4.2(c); and
 - (d) in section 6.2(a), by striking out the words "Yuulu?il?atḥ senior manager" and substituting "Yuulu?il?atḥ director".

PART 6 - COMMITTEE ACT AMENDMENTS

Committee Act amendments

6.1 The Committee Act, YFNS 81/2023 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 7 - COVID-19 TRANSITION ACT AMENDMENTS

Covid-19 Transition Act amendments

7.1 The Covid-19 Transition Act, YFNS 67/2020 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 8 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACT AMENDMENTS

Economic Development Act amendments

- 8.1 The Economic Development Act, YFNS 34/2014 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "asset management" and substituting "capital infrastructure and asset management";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the words "asset manager" and substituting "director of capital infrastructure and asset management";
 - (d) by striking out every occurrence of the words "Yuulu?il?atḥ senior manager" and substituting "Yuulu?il?atḥ director";
 - (e) section 1.2 is amended by striking out "asset management portfolio" and substituting "capital infrastructure and asset management portfolio";
 - (f) section 1.4 is amended by repealing the definitions of "economic development office", "economic development office" and "office of
 - (g) economic development".
 - (h) section 2.7 is repealed;
 - (i) section 2.8 is amended as follows:
 - (i) in the chapeau, by striking out "The" and substituting "In addition to the duties and powers set out by regulation under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, the";
 - (ii) by repealing subsection (a);
 - (iii) by repealing subsection (r) and replacing it with the following;
 - "perform any additional duties or exercise any additional powers assigned to the economic development officer under the governance and fiscal agreement"; and
 - (iv) by renumbering all subsections in alphabetical order;

and

(j) section 2.9 is repealed.

PART 9 - ELECTIONS ACT AMENDMENTS

Elections Act amendments

9.1 The Elections Act, YFNS 42/2015 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 10 - EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS ACT AMENDMENTS

Emergency Preparedness Act amendments

10.1 The Emergency Preparedness Act, YFNS 65/2020 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 11 - ENFORCEMENT ACT AMENDMENTS

Enforcement Act amendments

11.1 The Enforcement Act, YFNS 16/2011 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 12 - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT AMENDMENTS

Environmental Protection Act amendments

- 12.1 The Environmental Protection Act, YFNS 15/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the words "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources";
 - (c) section 7.2(c) is repealed; and
 - (d) section 7.2(d) is repealed.

PART 13 - FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION ACT AMENDMENTS

Financial Administration Act amendments

- 13.1 The Financial Administration Act, YFNS 6/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) section 1.4 is amended by adding the following definitions:
 - ""chief financial officer" means the office of the chief financial officer established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;
 - "Department of Finance" means the Department of Finance established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011"; and
 - (c) by repealing Part 2 and replacing it with the following:

"PART 2 – CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

In addition to the duties and powers set out by regulation under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, the chief financial officer must perform the following duties and may exercise the following powers:

- (d) establish, administer and maintain all Yuulu?il?ath accounts;
- (e) prepare draft multi-year financial plans, draft annual budgets and any draft amendments to the annual budgets;
- (f) prepare monthly financial reports, quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements:
- (g) prepare any other necessary financial records, in addition to those referred to in subsections (e) and (f);
- (h) actively monitor compliance with the financial terms of any agreements or funding arrangements entered into by the Yuulu?ił?ath First Nation;
- (i) actively monitor compliance with the Financial Administration Act, YFNS 6/2011 and any other Yuułu?ił?ath enactment, the primary purpose of which pertains to the finances of the Yuułu?ił?ath First Nation; and
- (j) prepare or provide any financial information required by the Legislature, the Executive, the finance committee or the chief administrative officer to perform their duties or exercise their powers."

PART 14 - FOREST ACT AMENDMENTS

Forest Act amendments

- 14.1 The Forest Act, YFNS 78/2022 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the words "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources";
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the words "Forest Resource Division" and substituting "forest resource division";
 - (d) section 1.5 is amended by striking the definition of "Forest Resource Division" an substituting "forest resource division" means the division established by regulation under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011;"
 - (e) by repealing section 3.3;
 - (f) by repealing section 3.5 and replacing it with the following:
 - "3.5 The mandate of the forest resource division is to seek to fulfil the mission referred to in section 3.1.";
 - (g) section 3.6 is amended
 - (i) by repealing subsections (a) and (g);
 - (ii) in subsection (e), by adding the word "and" after ";";
 - (iii) in subsection (f), by striking out "; and" and substituting "."; and
 - (iv) by renumbering all subsections in alphabetical order; and
 - (h) by repealing section 3.7.

PART 15 - FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT AMENDMENTS

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act amendments

- 15.1 The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, YFNS 77/2022 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer"; and
 - (b) section 1.2 is amended by striking out the words "community services portfolio" and substituting "health and social services portfolio".

PART 16 - GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL ACT AMENDMENTS

Government Personnel Act amendments

- 16.1 The Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the word "senior manager" or "senior managers" and substituting "Yuułu?ił?atḥ director" or "Yuułu?ił?atḥ directors", as appropriate;
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the word "indigenous" and substituting "Indigenous";
 - (d) section 1.1 is amended by adding the words ", YFNS 5/2011" after the words "Government Personnel Act";
 - (e) by repealing section 1.2 and substituting the following:
 - "The President is responsible for the executive oversight of this Act.";
 - (f) by repealing section 1.3(b) and substituting the following:
 - "This Act applies to
 - (i) the structure of the Yuulu?il?ath administration, and
 - (ii) the employment and management of personnel.";
 - (g) section 1.4 is amended by
 - (i) striking out the definition of "just cause"; and
 - (ii) striking out "." and substituting ";" in the definition of "nepotism";
 - (h) section 2.1(c) is amended by striking out the words "long term" and substituting "long-term";
 - (i) section 2.1(e) is amended by striking out the word "and" after the words "among personnel,";
 - (j) section 2.1(f) is amended by striking out "." and substituting ", and";
 - (k) section 2.1 is amended by adding the following subsection after subsection (f):

- "(g) provide for the establishment of departments and offices responsible for the oversight of those departments.";
- (1) section 2.2(a) is amended by adding the words "and 2.4" after the words "section 2.3";
- (m) section 2.3(b)(iii) is amended by striking out the word "through";
- (n) by repealing section 2.4 and replacing it with the following:
 - "2.4 Subject to any regulations,
 - (a) section 2.2(a) does not apply to an appointment that is a lateral transfer or a demotion, and
 - (b) despite section 2.2(a)(ii), the chief administrative officer may directly appoint personnel in the following circumstances:
 - (i) a temporary appointment of not more than twelve months in duration;
 - (ii) filling a vacancy in unusual or exceptional circumstances; or
 - (iii) a transfer or promotion of personnel."
- (o) section 2.5(a) is amended by striking out the words "he or she" and substituting "that individual";
- (p) section 2.5(b) is amended by
 - (i) striking out the words "If the appointment" and substituting "If an appointment", and
 - (ii) striking out the words "full time" and substituting "full-time";
- (q) section 2.5(d) is amended by striking out the words "his or her" and substituting "the individual's";
- (r) section 3.2 is amended by striking out the words ", the personnel committee and the Executive";
- (s) section 3.3 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the word "staff" and substituting "personnel";
- (t) by repealing section 3.6 and replacing it with the following:

"Human resources policy

- **3.6** (a) The Executive is responsible for maintaining the human resources policy.
 - (b) The chief administrative officer is responsible for:
 - (i) implementing the human resources policy, and
 - (ii) making the human resources policy available to Yuułu?ił?ath government representatives and all personnel.
 - (c) If any part of the human resources policy is relevant to the services being provided by a contractor or agent of the Yuulu?ił?atḥ government, that part of the policy must be made available to that contractor or agent."
- (u) by repealing sections 5.1(c) and 5.1(d);
- (v) by repealing section 5.2;
- (w) section 5.3 is amended by adding the words ", YFNS 4/2011" after the words "Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Act";
- (x) by repealing section 5.4 and replacing it with the following:

"Discipline, suspension and dismissal of personnel

- **5.4** (a) The chief administrative officer may
 - (i) discipline personnel for just cause,
 - (ii) suspend personnel from the performance of their duties or the exercise of their powers for just cause,
 - (iii) dismiss personnel for just cause, or
 - (iv) dismiss personnel without just cause on the provision of notice, or wages in lieu of notice, in the following circumstances:
 - (A) personnel with less than 12 consecutive months of continuous employment; or
 - (B) lay off because of lack of work or because of the discontinuance of a function.
 - (b) The chief administrative officer may delegate, in writing, any of the powers in section 5.4.

- (c) For certainty, a Yuulu?il?ath government representative must not discipline, suspend or dismiss any personnel.";
- (y) section 5.6(a) is amended by
 - (i) striking out every occurrence of the words "his or her"; and
 - (ii) adding the word "from" between the words "resign" and "employment";
- (z) section 5.6(b) is amended by striking out the words "his or her" and substituting "that individual's";
- (aa) by repealing Parts 6, 7 and 8;
- (bb) by repealing section 9.1 and replacing it with the following:

"Reporting

- **9.1** The chief administrative officer must on request from the Executive report on personnel-related matters.";
- (cc) section 9.2(b)(i)(P) is amended by adding the word "and" after the word "action;"; and
- (dd) section 9.2(b) is amended
 - (i) by adding the following paragraph after paragraph (i):
 - "(ii) establishing departments and offices to oversee those departments,"
 - (ii) renumbering paragraph (ii) as paragraph (iii); and
 - (iii) renumbering paragraph (iii) as paragraph (iv);
- (ee) in section 9.2 by adding after section 9.2(b)
 - "(c) The Executive may make regulations amending a Yuulu?il?ath enactment for the purpose of changing a reference to
 - (i) a specific executive portfolio,
 - (ii) a specific department, or
 - (iii) a specific Yuulu?il?ath director,

to

- (iv) the executive portfolio,
- (v) the department, or
- (vi) the Yuułu?ił?atḥ director,

as applicable, currently assigned responsibility in relation to the matter.

(d) All Yuulu?il?ath enactments shall be deemed to be amended to the extent required to align with any regulation made by the Executive under this section."

PART 17 - GOVERNMENT ACT AMENDMENTS

Government Act amendments

17.1 The Government Act, YFNS 2/2011 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 18 - INTERPRETATION ACT AMENDMENTS

Interpretation Act amendments

- 18.1 The Interpretation Act, YFNS 17/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by repealing section 2.6(e);
 - (b) in section 3.3, by
 - (i) repealing the definition of "asset manager", "chief financial officer" "community services manager", "director of operations", "lands manager", "lands register", "lands registry office" and "Yuulu?il?ath senior manager";
 - (ii) adding the following definitions:

"chief administrative officer" means the office of that name established by the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

"chief financial officer" means the office of that name established by the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office:

...

"director of capital infrastructure and asset management" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

• • •

"director of culture, language and heritage" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

. . .

"director of education and youth" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

• • •

YUUŁU2IŁ2ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

"director of health and social services" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

. . .

"director of intergovernmental affairs" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

...

"director of lands and resources" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

. .

"lands register" means the register maintained in the lands registry office in accordance with the Land Act containing a record of all dispositions under the Land Act and any transfers of an interest in, or licence in relation to, Yuułu?ił?ath lands;

"lands registrar" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, or the individual appointed to hold that office;

"lands registry office" means the office of that name established under the Government Personnel Act:

. . .

"Yuulu?il?ath director" means the director of a department or similar division of the Yuulu?il?ath administration and, for certainty, includes the chief financial officer, but does not include

- (a) a director of a Yuułu?ił?ath public institution; or
- (b) a director of a Yuulu?il?ath corporation;
- (c) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
- (d) by striking out every occurrence of the word "Yuulu?il?atḥ senior manager" and substituting "Yuulu?il?atḥ director";

PART 19 - LAND ACT AMENDMENTS

Land Act amendments

- 19.1 The Land Act, YFNS 12/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the words "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources";
 - (c) section 1.4 is amended
 - (i) by striking out the definition of "registrar" and substituting the following:
 - ""registrar" means the office of the lands registrar established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011";
 - (ii) by adding the following definitions:
 - ""Department of Lands and Resources" means the department of that name established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011 or any department designated under that Act to assume the responsibilities under section 2.1;";
 - "lands registry office" means the office established under the Government Personnel Act, YFNS 5/2011, or any other Yuułu?ił?atḥ enactment to be responsible for the Yuułu?ił?atḥ lands register;
 - (d) Part 2 is repealed and replaced with the following:

"PART 2 - ADMINISTRATION OF YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ LANDS

Department of Lands and Resources

- **2.1** (a) The Department of Lands and Resources is responsible for:
 - (i) the management and administration of Yuulu?il?ath lands as required
 - (A) in accordance with this or any other Yuulu?il?ath land enactment, or
 - (B) by the Executive;

- (ii) the maintenance and protection of records relating to Yuulu?ił?ath lands and Yuulu?ił?ath land enactments; and
- (iii) the preparation of forms and instruments to be used in relation to Yuułu?ił?atḥ lands and Yuułu?ił?atḥ land enactments.

Powers retained by the Executive

- 2.2 (a) Unless otherwise provided in this or another Yuulu?ił?atḥ enactment, the Executive retains for itself all power to dispose of or approve an interest in, or licence in relation to, Yuulu?ił?atḥ lands.
 - (b) The Executive may only exercise the powers and perform the duties referred to in subsection (a) in accordance with this Act and all other applicable laws.
 - (c) Subject to this Act, the Executive retains for itself all power for and in the name of the Yuułu?ił?atḥ First Nation to, and the Executive may,
 - (i) enter into any agreement it considers necessary or advisable for the purpose of
 - (A) managing or administering Yuulu?il?ath lands or money derived from Yuulu?il?ath lands, and
 - (B) otherwise giving effect to this Act or any other Yuułu?ił?ath land enactment,
 - (ii) authorize a Yuulu?il?atḥ official to enter into any such agreement or class of such agreements for or in the name of the Yuulu?il?atḥ First Nation, and
 - (iii) establish restrictions or conditions on any authority to enter into agreements or classes of agreements given under paragraph (ii).

Land authorities

- **2.3** The Executive may
 - (a) establish Yuułu?ił?atḥ public institutions under Yuułu?ił?atḥ law, and
 - (b) incorporate entities under federal or provincial laws,

to manage or administer, or assist the Department of Lands and Resources in the management or administration of, Yuulu?il?ath lands.

Delegation authority

- 2.4 (a) Subject to subsection (b), the Executive may, by regulation, delegate to any body or persons, including a land authority, any duty or power of the Department of Lands and Resources relating to the management or administration of Yuulu?il?ath lands.
 - (b) Despite subsection (a), the Executive may not delegate to any body or person any of the following duties or powers of the Executive:
 - (i) to dispose of or approve an interest in Yuulu?ił?ath lands;
 - (ii) to call an information meeting, ratification meeting or referendum;
 - (iii) to enact a Yuulu?il?ath enactment;
 - (iv) to delegate a duty or power of the Executive under this or any other Yuulu?il?ath enactment.
 - (c) For certainty,
 - (i) a delegation by the Executive to a body or person under subsection (a)
 - (A) may include all or any part of a duty or power of the Department of Lands and Resources relating to the management or administration of Yuułu?ił?atḥ lands;
 - (B) may pertain to all or a specified area of Yuułu?ił?ath lands;
 - (C) is subject to any terms or conditions established by the Executive under the regulation making the delegation; and
 - (D) does not restrict the Executive from delegating any additional duties or powers of the Department of Lands and Resources to the body or person under another regulation, and
 - (ii) a body or person to which the Executive delegates a duty or power under subsection (a) may only perform the duty or

exercise the power in accordance with this Act, the regulation making the delegation and all other applicable laws.

Lands registry office

- 2.5 The lands registry office is responsible for maintaining
 - (a) an inventory of Yuulu?il?ath lands, and
 - (b) the lands register containing a record of
 - (i) all dispositions under this Act, and
 - (ii) any transfer of an interest in, or licence in relation to, Yuulu?ił?ath lands

in accordance with this or any other Yuulu?il?ath enactment or as required by the director of lands and resources.

Lands register

- **2.6** (a) The registrar
 - (i) must record in the lands register
 - (A) a description of all Yuulu?il?ath lands,
 - (B) all dispositions under this Act, and
 - (C) any transfer of an interest in, or licence in relation to, Yuulu?il?ath lands, and
 - (ii) may record in the lands register other information relating to Yuulu?ił?ath lands.
 - (b) During regular business hours, any person may examine and inspect the records of the lands register
 - (i) after completing an application in the form that the registrar requires, and
 - (ii) on the conditions that the registrar imposes.
 - (c) The Yuulu?il?ath First Nation makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the records of the lands register and a person may not recover from the Yuulu?il?ath First Nation any

loss or damage that the person suffers by reliance on the records of the lands register.

Duties of the lands registrar

- **2.7** (a) The registrar must perform the following duties and may exercise the following powers:
 - (i) manage the lands registry office;
 - (ii) record entries and amendments to entries in the lands register required under this or another Yuulu?il?ath enactment; and
 - (iii) provide for the security and maintenance of the lands register.

(b)

The registrar and staff of the lands registry office must not

- (i) directly or indirectly act as the agent of a person investing money in or taking security in Yuulu?il?ath lands,
- (ii) advise for a fee, reward or otherwise on interests in, or licences in relation to, Yuułu?ił?ath lands, or
- (iii) practice as a lawyer, notary public or conveyancer in relation to Yuulu?il?ath lands.";
- (e) by striking out every occurrence of the number "2.13(a)" and substituting "2.6(a)"; and
- (f) section 1.1 is amended by adding the words ", YFNS 5/2011" after the words "Government Personnel Act";
- (g) section 6.6(g) is amended by adding the words ", YFNS 7/2011" after the words "Administrative Decisions Review Act";
- (h) by correcting any reference to 10.23.1 to 11.23.1; and
- (i) section 11.23.1(d)(ii) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director" and substituting "chief administrative officer".

PART 20 - LEGISLATURE RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE ACT AMENDMENTS

Legislature Rules of Order and Procedure Act amendments

- 20.1 The Legislature Rules of Order and Procedure Act, YFNS 3/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the words "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by repealing section 14.1(a);
 - (c) by repealing section 14.1(b) and substituting the following:
 - "The Legislature may by motion create executive portfolios from time to time.";
 - (d) by repealing section 14.1(f) and substituting the following:
 - "Each member of the Legislature appointed to hold an executive portfolio in accordance with subsection (c) is responsible for the executive oversight of
 - (i) each Act associated with that executive portfolio as provided for in a Yuulu?il?ath enactment, and
 - (ii) any department as provided for in a Yuulu?il?ath enactment."

YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

PART 21 - PLANNING AND LAND USE MANAGEMENT ACT AMENDMENTS

Planning and Land Use Management Act amendments

21.1 The Planning and Land Use Management Act, YFNS 13/2011 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the word "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources".

PART 22 - PUBLIC ORDER, PEACE AND SAFETY ACT AMENDMENTS

Public Order, Peace and Safety Act amendments

- 22.1 The Public Order, Peace and Safety Act, YFNS 43/2015 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) in section 1.4, by
 - (i) repealing the definition of "lands manager"; and
 - (c) by striking out every occurrence of the word "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources".

PART 23 - REFERENDUM ACT AMENDMENTS

Referendum Act amendments

- 23.1 The Referendum Act, YFNS 9/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer"; and
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the word "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources".

YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

PART 24 - RESOURCES HARVESTING ACT AMENDMENTS

Resources Harvesting Act amendments

- 24.1 The Resources Harvesting Act, YFNS 14/2011 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the word "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources"; and
 - (c) section 5.1 is repealed.

YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

PART 25 - SUBSURFACE RESOURCES ACT AMENDMENTS

Subsurface Resources Act amendments

- 25.1 The Subsurface Resources Act, YFNS 53/2016 is amended as follows:
 - (a) by striking out every occurrence of the word "director of operations" and substituting "chief administrative officer";
 - (b) by striking out every occurrence of the word "lands manager" and substituting "director of lands and resources"; and
 - (c) section 2.3 is repealed.

YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

PART 26 - ZONING AND STRUCTURES ACT AMENDMENTS

Zoning and Structures Act amendments

26.1 The Zoning and Structures Act, YFNS 51/2016 is amended by striking out every occurrence of the words "lands manager and substituting "director of lands and resources", except in section 34.5.

YUUŁU?IŁ?ATḤ GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION STRUCTURE AMENDMENT ACT YFNS 87/2025

PART 27 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Commencement

27.1 This Act comes into force on the date that a regulation providing for the establishment or continuation of departments and Yuułu?ił?atḥ director offices to oversee those departments is enacted.